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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Tell and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM: Neil Miller, Director of Public Works 
  Carmen Zarate, Management Analyst 
 
DATE: October 17, 2006 
 
SUBJECT: Approve Assessment Ballot for the Proposed Supplemental Street Landscaping and 

Lighting Assessment District by Redondo Beach for FY 06-07 for Manhattan Beach 
Property Located in Redondo Beach 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council vote in favor of the proposed Supplemental Street 
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District for the City of Redondo Beach.   
 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
The proposed maximum FY 06-07 Supplemental Assessment Amount is $12.05 for the parcel that 
belongs to the City of Manhattan Beach in accordance with the Property Owner Assessment Ballot 
from Redondo Beach. The maximum supplemental assessment rate will be adjusted each year by 
the annual change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for Los Angeles County or 5%, whichever is 
less.  The Supplemental Assessment will appear each year on the City’s property tax bill.  
Assessments will be levied beginning in FY 2007-08.  The actual supplemental assessments levied 
in any fiscal year will be approved by the Redondo Beach City Council after a public hearing and 
may not exceed the maximum assessment rate without receiving property owner approval for the 
increase. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Redondo Beach has adopted a resolution declaring its intention to establish a 
Supplemental Street Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District and to levy supplemental 
assessments against properties in the proposed District.   
 
The Redondo Beach City Council is seeking for property owners to pay an increased annual 
assessment to balance the District budget through the formation of a Supplemental District and the 
levy of a supplemental assessment.  Assessments from the existing district fund horticultural care 
and routine landscape maintenance for medians, parkway tree care and trimming, parkway 
landscaping care in select areas and operation and maintenance of street lights and traffic signals.  
Assessments also fund the repair and improvement of these areas and fixtures.  The Supplemental 
District Assessments will raise approximately $680,000 per year.  Of this amount, $375,000 will be 
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used to sustain existing service levels while the balance will be used to enhance services.  The 
supplemental assessment district will be used to pay for the increased costs of operation, 
maintenance, repair and improvement of street lighting, traffic signals, and median and parkway 
landscaping within Redondo Beach.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
The City of Manhattan Beach is the property owner of one parcel (4150-001-902) on the corner of 
Vail and Manhattan Beach Blvd in the City of Redondo Beach. This parcel is the location of a City 
groundwater well.  Currently, the City does not pay an assessment on this property for the existing 
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District because the City of Redondo Beach does not collect 
any assessments on government owned property for Assessment Districts formed before the 
enactment of Proposition 218 in 1996.  Since the passing of Proposition 218, public agencies must 
be assessed for parcels that they own. 
 
Similar to the Redondo Beach district, property owners in the City of Manhattan Beach are 
assessed a fixed amount for the Landscaping and Street Lighting Maintenance Assessment District 
on their property tax bill.  In the future, the City of Manhattan Beach may seek to collect a 
supplemental assessment from its property owners to keep pace with the City’s expenses.  Redondo 
Beach’s existing Lighting and Landscaping Assessment District has not been increased since 1991 
which has resulted in a continuing deficit.  Redondo Beach has maintained services for the last 15 
years without asking property owners for an increase in assessments.  However, materials mailed 
with the assessment ballot state that the City can no longer afford to fund the current landscape and 
lighting deficit with its more limited general revenues.  The City has scheduled a Public Hearing 
concerning the proposed Supplemental District for November 7, 2006. 
 
The Department of Public Works suggests that the City support Redondo Beach’s supplemental 
assessment district to build a positive intergovernmental relationship that will not only benefit its 
own City but also its surrounding regions.  
 
 
Attachments: A. Supplemental Street Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District Property  
       Owner Assessment Ballot 
  B.  Frequently Asked Questions 
  C.  Notice to Property Owners and Ballot for Supplemental Street Landscaping and  
        Lighting Assessment District 
 
 














